
Municipal Planning Commission - Meeting Agenda September 26, 2023 

 

 
 

AGENDA 

Municipal Planning Commission Meeting 

Tuesday September 26, 2023 

6:15pm 

 
1. Date/Place: September 26, 2023, 6:15pm at the Seniors Drop-in Centre 4918 50th 

Avenue, Bentley AB 
 

2. Members Attendance: 
 

Mayor Rathjen 
Deputy Mayor Eastman 
Councillor Hansen 
Councillor Grimsdale 
Councillor Valiquette 
 
CAO/Development Officer and Recording Secretary – Marc Fortais 

 
3. Amendments and Acceptance of Agenda 

 
4. Previous Minutes: 

 
a) Municipal Planning Commission Minutes August 31, 2023 
 

5. New Business 
 

a) Application for consideration: JDP Ventures Inc. – 4802 52nd St - 
Development Permit 15-23 – Addition of 16 40-foot shipping containers in 
the Heavy Industrial District to support the expansion of the storage 
business.  

 
The applicant is requesting the following: 
 

• Approval of discretionary use in the I2 District for the addition of 16 
brand new 40-foot shipping containers, compartmentalized with 
doors to facilitate an expansion of the storage operations that exist 
on the property. Shipping containers will be 40’ long X 9’6” high X 8’ 
wide. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Municipal Planning Commission – Meeting Minutes August 31, 2023 1 
  _____ 
  Initial 

 
 
 

Minutes of the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting of the Town of Bentley  
Tuesday August 31, 2023 

 
Date & Place Minutes of the Municipal Planning Commission Meeting of the 

Town of Bentley held Tuesday August 31 at 6:00 pm, in the Seniors 
Drop-In Centre 4918 50th Ave, Bentley AB 

 
 
In Attendance  
 Deputy Mayor Eastman (Chair) 
 Councillor Hansen 
 Councillor Grimsdale 
 Councillor Valiquette 
 
 CAO/Development Officer and Recording Secretary – Marc Fortais 
 
Regrets Mayor Rathjen 
 
 
Call To Order Deputy Mayor Eastman called the meeting to order at 6:00pm 
 
 
Indigenous Acknowledgement 

 
“We acknowledge that we are meeting on Treaty 6 Territory and 
Home of Metis Nation Region 3, on land that is part of a historic 
agreement involving mutuality and respect. We recognize all the 
many First Nations, Metis, Inuit, and non-First Nations whose 
footsteps have marked these lands.” 

 
 
Agenda  

Motion MPC 21/2023 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT 
the Agenda of the August 31, 2023, Municipal Planning 
Commission Meeting be accepted.” 

         Carried 
 
 



Municipal Planning Commission – Meeting Minutes August 31, 2023 2 
  _____ 
  Initial 

 
Previous Minutes  

Motion MPC 22/2023 Moved by Councilor Grimsdale “THAT 
the minutes of the July 11, 2023, Municipal Planning Commission 
Meeting of the Town of Bentley be confirmed.” 

 
         Carried 
 
 
New Business:  

a) Application for consideration: Richard & Laura Cozicar – 
4701 50th Ave – Development Permit 13-23 – Additional 
accessory building (garage structure) 
 

Motion MPC 23/2023 Moved by Councillor Valiquette, “THAT 
the Municipal Planning Commission approve Development Permit 
13-23 from the property owner Richard and Laura Cozicar, for the 
construction of a secondary garage structure with dimensions of 
24ft wide X 24 ft long X 14 ft high (576 square feet) as a 
discretionary use in the R1 District; AND 
 
THAT the total square footage of all approved accessory buildings 
on the property including the existing garage structure (351 square 
feet) shall not exceed a total of 927 square feet; AND 
 
THAT all other setback requirements, and any other requirements 
as outlined by the Land Use Bylaw and/or through building code for 
construction of an accessory building will be met by the builder.   
 
        Carried 
 

Adjournment 
 

Motion MPC 24/2023 Moved by Deputy Mayor Eastman, 
“THAT the municipal planning commission meeting of August 31, 
2023, be adjourned at 6:08pm. 
 
        Carried 
  

 
 
 
 
_________________________    _________________________ 
Mayor Rathjen       CAO Marc Fortais 



September 26, 2023,  Municipal Planning Commission – Development Permit to place 16 shipping containers to be used in storage 
business. 

 
 
 
Agenda Date:  September 26, 2023 
Agenda Item: JDP Ventures Inc. & Ron Prefontaine – 4802 52nd Street 
 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
THAT the Municipal Planning Commission consider the approval of the Development Permit 
Application 15-23 (Attachment #1) from JDP Ventures and approved by the current owner Ron 
Prefontaine. The application is being considered as discretionary use in the I2 District; AND 
 
THAT a variance be issued to allow 16 new shipping containers to be placed on the property, to be 
used for the purposes of on-site storage and to support the business expansion of Bentley Storage.  
 
This Development Permit application is being considered by the Municipal Planning Commission 
(MPC) due to the fact that the current Land Use Bylaw provides a limitation on the number of shipping 
containers  located on parcels in the Industrial and Public Use Districts. Currently it states that the 
maximum number of containers is 1 shipping container per hectare of parcel area may be permitted.  
 
It is important to note that shipping containers are permitted to use in the I2 district, however the 
limiting factor is as described above in the definitions of the Land Use Bylaw. In addition, the shipping 
containers will be placed on the ground and will not be stacked. 
 
The Development Officer is recommending that the Municipal Planning Commission consider granting 
this variance to help facilitate the expansion of Bentley Storage. Considering the nature of this 
business and its intention to use these containers as self-storage units, placing the proposed brand-
new shipping containers is in alignment with the building structure normally used in the Industrial 
District and will not look much different than the construction of new steel buildings. Therefore, the 
characteristics of the area would not be impacted negatively by this type of development.   
 
It is the option of the Municipal Planning Commission to require additional screening of the storage 
facility, which could include the planting of trees along the highway 12 side in addition to 52 street 
outside of the fence line for which Town of Bentley Parks and Rec would own and maintain. This 
would improve the appearance of the storage yard and entrance into the community.  
. 
FINANCIAL AND BUDGET IMPLICATIONS 
 
It should be noted that shipping containers will not add as much assessed value as a built steel 
building, they will be approximately half the cost of what a steel building would be to put a slab and 
structure up. It is estimated that the 16 shipping containers will cost approximately $208,000 and be 
assessed at a similar value based on that submitted development value.  
 
This would result in $208 000 / 1000 = 208 X 2023 Mil Rate (17.25871730) = $3,589.81 in increased 
tax revenue (based on 2023 rates) 



September 26, 2023,  Municipal Planning Commission – Development Permit to place 16 shipping containers to be used in storage 
business. 

  
RECOMMENDATION 
 
THAT the Municipal Planning Commission Approve the Development Permit Application 15-23 from 
JDP Ventures and approved by the current owner Ron Prefontaine for the placement of 16 additional 
shipping containers to be used for storage in alignment with the current business model; AND 
 
THAT a variance be granted to allow the placement of the 16 additional shipping containers from the 
allowed 1 per hectare as stated in the land use bylaw due to the fact that the business is specifically a 
storage business and will result in an economic benefit to the Town of Bentley; AND 
 
THAT each set of containers that are connected side by side or end by end would be considered as a 
building. The applicant must ensure that they meet all permit requirements associated to the 
construction of a building, including but not limited to any required building permits.  
 
THAT the appearance of all units must be maintained in good condition, acceptable to the 
Development Officer.  
 
THAT the applicant be required to place additional screening suitable to the Town along the south 
side of the property facing highway 12, and along the east side of the property along 52nd street; AND 
 
THAT all other setback requirements, and any other requirements as outlined by the Land Use Bylaw 
and/or through the Alberta Building Code and National Safety Code for the placement of shipping 
containers to be used as storage buildings, must be met. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

1) Development Permit Application 15-23 – 4802 52nd Street – JDP Ventures & Ron 
Prefontaine 
 
 
 

        _________________________________ 
        Marc Fortais, CAO    














	Agenda Municipal Planning Commisison Meeting September 26, 2023.pdf
	Meeting Minutes - Municpal Planning Commission Meeting Aug 31, 2023
	MPC - September 26, 2023 - New Business - Development Permit Placement of 16 - 40 foot seacans - 4802 52nd Ave Bentley Storage
	Development Permit Applicaiton - JDP Ventures & Ron Prefontaine - 4802 52nd Ave

